

**SENATE BILL 146 (LRB -2053)**

An Act to amend 66.0305 (title), 66.0305 (1), 66.0305 (2), 66.0305 (3), 66.0305 (4) (a) 4., 66.0305 (5) and 66.0305 (6) of the statutes; relating to: authorizing a county to participate in a municipal revenue sharing agreement. (FE)

**2005**

10-27.	S.	Introduced by Senators <b>Kapanke, Brown, Cowles, A. Lasee, Olsen, Roessler and Wirch</b> ; cosponsored by Representatives <b>Wieckert, Huebsch, Nerison, Shilling, Ainsworth, Ballweg, Gielow, Gunderson, Hahn, Hines, Jeskewitz, LeMahieu, Loeffelholz, Lothian, Molepske, Mursau, Musser, Nass, Ott, Owens, Petrowski, Pridemore, Rhoades, Townsend, Van Roy and Vrakas.</b>	
03-29.	S.	Read first time and referred to committee on Veterans, Homeland Security, Military Affairs, Small Business and Government Reform .....	139
04-14.	S.	Fiscal estimate received.	
04-18.	S.	Fiscal estimate received.	
08-03.	S.	Public hearing held.	
08-24.	S.	Executive action taken.	
08-31.	S.	Report passage recommended by committee on Veterans, Homeland Security, Military Affairs, Small Business and Government Reform, Ayes 5, Noes 0 .....	334
08-31.	S.	Available for scheduling.	
09-19.	S.	Placed on calendar 9-20-2005 pursuant to Senate Rule 18(1).	
09-20.	S.	Read a second time .....	356
09-20.	S.	Ordered to a third reading .....	356
09-20.	S.	Rules suspended .....	356
09-20.	S.	Read a third time and <b>passed</b> .....	356
09-20.	S.	Ordered immediately messaged .....	358
09-26.	A.	Received from Senate .....	485
09-26.	A.	Read first time and referred to committee on Rules .....	486
10-27.	A.	Placed on calendar 11-1-2005 by committee on Rules.	
11-01.	A.	Read a second time.	
11-01.	A.	Ordered to a third reading.	
11-01.	A.	Rules suspended.	
11-01.	A.	Read a third time and <b>concurrred in</b> .	
11-01.	A.	Ordered immediately messaged.	
11-02.	S.	Received from Assembly concurrred in.	

**2005  
ENROLLED BILL**

05en S-B-146

**ADOPTED DOCUMENTS:**

Orig     Engr         SubAmdt     

05 - 20531 / 1

Amendments to above (if none, write "NONE"): None

Corrections - show date (if none, write "NONE"): None

Topic relax

11/2/05      [Signature]  
Date                      Enrolling Drafter

**ELECTRONIC PROCEDURE:**

Follow automatic or manual enrolling procedures in *TEXT2000 Reference Guide*, Document Specific Procedures, Ch. 20, Engrossing and Enrolling

**DISTRIBUTION:**

**HOUSE OF ORIGIN:**

- 11 copies plus bill jacket
- Secretary of State's envelope containing 4 copies plus newspaper notice

**REVISOR OF STATUTES:**

- 5 copies

**DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION:**

- 2 copies

**LRB:**

- Drafting file ..... original
- Drafting attorney ..... 1 copy
- Legislative editors ..... 1 copy each
- Reference section ..... 1 copy
- Bill index librarian ..... 1 copy

## 2005 SENATE BILL 146

March 29, 2005 - Introduced by Senators KAPANKE, BROWN, COWLES, A. LASEE, OLSEN, ROESSLER and WIRCH, cosponsored by Representatives WIECKERT, HUEBSCH, NERISON, SHILLING, AINSWORTH, BALLWEG, GIELOW, GUNDERSON, HAHN, HINES, JESKEWITZ, LEMAHIEU, LOEFFELHOLZ, LOTHIAN, MOLEPSKE, MURSAU, MUSSER, NASS, OTT, OWENS, PETROWSKI, PRIDEMORE, RHOADES, TOWNSEND, VAN ROY and VRAKAS. Referred to Committee on Veterans, Homeland Security, Military Affairs, Small Business and Government Reform.

- 1 **AN ACT to amend** 66.0305 (title), 66.0305 (1), 66.0305 (2), 66.0305 (3), 66.0305  
2 (4) (a) 4., 66.0305 (5) and 66.0305 (6) of the statutes; **relating to:** authorizing  
3 a county to participate in a municipal revenue sharing agreement.

---

### *Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau*

Under current law, cities, villages, and towns (municipalities) may enter into agreements to share revenues from taxes and special charges with other municipalities and with federally recognized American Indian tribes or bands. No municipality may enter into an agreement with one or more municipalities unless the municipality is contiguous to at least one other municipality that enters into the agreement.

A municipal revenue sharing agreement must meet a number of conditions. It must:

1. Be for a minimum term of ten years.
2. Describe the boundaries of the area within which the revenues are to be shared in the agreement.
3. Describe the formula or other means of determining the amount of revenues to be shared under the agreement.
4. Specify the date or dates upon which revenues agreed to be shared are to be paid to the appropriate municipality.
5. Specify how the agreement may be invalidated after the expiration of the minimum ten-year term.

An agreement under current law may address any other necessary and proper matters, including any agreements with respect to services or agreements with

**SENATE BILL 146**

respect to municipal boundaries. Current law also requires that at least 30 days before entering into an agreement the participating municipality must hold a public hearing on the proposed agreement (public hearing notice requirements are specified). In addition, current law provides that an advisory referendum on a proposed agreement may be called either by the governing body of the participating municipality or by the qualified electors of a participating municipality. In the latter case, a petition, signed by a number of qualified electors equal to at least 10 percent of the votes cast for governor in a municipality at the last gubernatorial election must be timely filed. Time limits and notice requirements are provided for the advisory referendum.

This bill modifies current law by authorizing a county to enter into a revenue sharing agreement with another county or a municipality or federally recognized American Indian tribe or band.

For further information see the *state and local* fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

---

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

1           **SECTION 1.** 66.0305 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

2           **66.0305** (title) **Municipal Political subdivision revenue sharing.**

3           **SECTION 2.** 66.0305 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           66.0305 (1) **DEFINITION.** In this section, "~~municipality~~" "political subdivision"

5 means a city, village ~~or~~, town, or county.

6           **SECTION 3.** 66.0305 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

7           **66.0305 (2) MUNICIPAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISION REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT.**

8 Subject to the requirements of this section, any 2 or more ~~municipalities~~ political  
9 subdivisions may, by a majority vote of a quorum of their governing bodies, enter into  
10 an agreement to share all or a specified part of revenues derived from taxes and  
11 special charges, as defined in s. 74.01 (4). One or more ~~municipalities~~ political  
12 subdivisions may enter into agreements under this section with federally recognized  
13 American Indian tribes or bands.

14           **SECTION 4.** 66.0305 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

**SENATE BILL 146**

1           66.0305 (3) PUBLIC HEARING. At least 30 days before entering into an agreement  
2 under sub. (2), a ~~municipality~~ political subdivision shall hold a public hearing on the  
3 proposed agreement. Notice of the hearing shall be published as a class 3 notice  
4 under ch. 985.

5           **SECTION 5.** 66.0305 (4) (a) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

6           66.0305 (4) (a) 4. The date upon which revenues agreed to be shared under the  
7 agreement shall be paid to the appropriate ~~municipality~~ political subdivision shall  
8 be specified.

9           **SECTION 6.** 66.0305 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

10          66.0305 (5) CONTIGUOUS BOUNDARIES. No ~~municipality~~ political subdivision  
11 may enter into an agreement under sub. (2) with one or more ~~municipalities~~ political  
12 subdivisions unless the ~~municipality~~ political subdivision is contiguous to at least  
13 one other ~~municipality~~ political subdivision that enters into the agreement.

14          **SECTION 7.** 66.0305 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

15          66.0305 (6) ADVISORY REFERENDUM. (a) Within 30 days after the hearing under  
16 sub. (3), the governing body of a participating ~~municipality~~ political subdivision may  
17 adopt a resolution calling for an advisory referendum on the agreement. An advisory  
18 referendum shall be held if, within 30 days after the hearing under sub. (3), a  
19 petition, signed by a number of qualified electors equal to at least 10% of the votes  
20 cast for governor in the ~~municipality~~ political subdivision at the last gubernatorial  
21 election, is filed with the clerk of a participating ~~municipality~~ political subdivision,  
22 requesting an advisory referendum on the revenue sharing plan. The petition shall  
23 conform to the requirements of s. 8.40 and shall be filed as provided in s. 8.37. If an  
24 advisory referendum is held, the ~~municipality's~~ political subdivision's governing

**SENATE BILL 146****SECTION 7**

1 body may not vote to approve the agreement under sub. (2) until the report under par.  
2 (d) is filed.

3 (b) The advisory referendum shall be held not less than 42 days nor more than  
4 72 days after adoption of the resolution under par. (a) calling for the referendum or  
5 not less than 42 days nor more than 72 days after receipt of the petition under par.  
6 (a) by the municipal or county clerk. The municipal or county clerk shall give notice  
7 of the referendum by publishing a notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the  
8 municipality political subdivision, both on the publication day next preceding the  
9 advisory referendum election and one week prior to that publication date.

10 (c) The advisory referendum shall be conducted by the municipal political  
11 subdivision's election officials. The governing body of the municipality political  
12 subdivision may specify the number of election officials for the referendum. The  
13 ballots shall contain the words "For the revenue sharing agreement" and "Against  
14 the revenue sharing agreement" and shall otherwise conform to the provisions of s.  
15 5.64 (2). The election shall be conducted as are other municipal or county elections  
16 in accordance with chs. 6 and 7, insofar as applicable.

17 (d) The election inspectors shall report the results of the election, showing the  
18 total number of votes cast and the numbers cast for and against the revenue sharing.  
19 The election inspectors shall attach their affidavit to the report and immediately file  
20 the report in the office of the municipal or county clerk.

21 (e) The costs of the advisory referendum election shall be borne by the  
22 municipality political subdivision that holds the election.

23

(END)